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Respondents. COMPLAINT

There is reason to believe that the respondents named herein have willfully violated the

Animal Welfare Act, as amended (7 U.S.C. §2131 et seq .lithe “Act” or “AWA”), and the

regulations and standards issued thereunder (9 C.F.R. §1.1 et seq .lithe “Regulations” and

“Standards”). Therefore, the Administrator of the Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service

(“APHIS”) issues this complaint alleging the following:

JURISDICTIONAL ALLEGATIONS

1 . CJ’s Great Cats World Park, Inc. (“CJ’s World Park”), is an Oregon corporation

whose president, secretary, director, and registered agent for service ofprocess is Craig Wagner

and/or Craig Warner, whose mailing address is 27919 Redwood Highway, Cave Junction,

Oregon 97523. At all times mentioned herein, said respondent was operating as an exhibitor, as

that term is used in the Act and the Regulations, and has heldAWA license 92-C-0144 since

approximately March 26, 2008.

2. Craig Wagner is an individual whose mailing address is 27919 Redwood

Highway, Cave Junction, Oregon 97523. On information and belief, complainant alleges that

respondent Craig Wagner is also known as Craig Warner. At all times mentioned herein, said

respondent was the president, secretary, registered agent, and director of respondent CJ’s World

Park and operated as an exhibitor, as that term is used in the Act and the Regulations, or acted for
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or was employed by an exhibitor (respondent CJ’s World Park), and his acts, omissions, or

failures within the scope of his employment or office are, pursuant to section 2139 of the Act

(7 U.S.C. § 2139), deemed to be his own acts, omissions, or failures, as well as the acts,

omissions, or failures of respondent CJ’s World Park. Respondent Wagner operated as an

exhibitor and held a license, or was a principal of a licensed exhibitor, on or about the following

dates:

a. 1993-1994; Wild River Exotics, AWA license number 41 -C-0066;

b. 1994-2004; Craig Wagner dba Center for Endangered Cats, AWA license

number 41-C-0082;

c. 2004; Cynthia Gamble and Craig Wagner partnership; AWA license

number 4 1 -C-00 1 3

;

d. 2004-2005; Great Cats of the World Park, AWA license number

92-C-0128;

e. 2005-2008; Great Cats of the World Park, Inc., AWA license number

92-C-0128.

3. Respondents operate a zoo (as that term is defined in the Regulations), and exhibit

approximately 46 wild and exotic animals. Respondents conduct exhibitions both on and

off-site. The gravity of the violations herein is great, and include repeated noncompliance with

the Regulations and failure to meet the minimum Standards for handling animals, resulting in

injuries. In 1990, respondent Wagner was charged in Wisconsin with, and pled no contest to,

possession of wild animals without a permit and the sale of an endangered animal. Wisconsin v.

Wagner, Polk Cty. Cases 1990F0000003, 1990F0000004. In 1993, respondent Wagner was

convicted in Wisconsin of animal neglect. Wisconsin v. Wagner, Case No. 92 CM 185 (Wise.

1993)(Wisc. Stat. 951.13: “No person owning or responsible for confining or impounding any

animal may fail to supply the animal with a sufficient supply of food and water as prescribed in

this section.”). Respondent Wagner was sentenced to 9 months in jail (stayed), placed on
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probation for four years, and ordered to pay $45,308 in restitution. On June 24, 1 994, APHIS

offered a stipulation to respondent Wagner, with respect to alleged violations stemming from his

exhibition of animals without adequate distance and/or barriers between animals and the public.

APHIS issued an official warning notice (MN 04-002-AC) to respondent Wagner, dba Center for

Endangered Cats, with respect to the failure on March 12, 2004, to provide minimally-adequate

veterinary care to a snow leopard, two Amur leopards, a lynx, and a caracal, to provide animals

with potable water and sufficient food, and to have adequately-trained employees. On August 2,

2006, Great Cats of the World was found by a federal district court to have conspired to violate

the Endangered Species Act (18 U.S.C. § 371, 16 U.S.C. § 1538(f)), by “agreeing with others to

sell and offer to sell endangered species, namely ocelots, in interstate commerce.” U.S. v. Great

Cats ofthe World, Inc., No. CR 06-3 14-MO (D. Or.)(Plea Agreement, August 2, 2006, signed by

respondent Wagner).

ALLEGED VIOLATIONS

4. On or about November 21, 2008, respondents willfully violated the Regulations

(9 C.F.R. § 2.100(a)), by failing to meet the minimum Standards. Respondents failed to repair

the mesh wire panel between enclosures housing jaguars, which had a roughly one foot square

hole, exposing the animals to injury. 9 C.F.R. § 3.125(a).

5 . On July 1 0, 2009, respondents failed to make, keep and maintain records of the

acquisition of four animals (two clouded leopards, one tiger and one snow leopard), as required,

in willful violation of the Regulations. 9 C.F.R. § 2.75(b)(1).

6. On or about February 4, 201 1, respondents willfully violated the Regulations

(9 C.F.R. § 2.100(a)), by failing to meet the minimum Standards. Respondents failed to repair
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the jaguar enclosure, which had a softball-size hole in the wall paneling, exposing exterior metal

and compromising the structural integrity of the enclosure. 9 C.F.R. § 3.125(a).

7. On or about July 2, 201 1 , at Larkspur, Colorado, respondents failed to handle a

tiger and two leopards during public exhibition so there was minimal risk ofharm to the animal

and to the public, with sufficient distance and/or barriers between the tigers and the general

viewing public so as to assure the safety of the animal and the public, and failed to handle a tiger

and two leopards as carefully as possible, in willful violation of the Regulations. 9 C.F .R.

§§ 2.131(b)(1), (c)(1).

8. On or about July 7, 20 1 1 ,
at Larkspur, Colorado, respondents willfully violated

the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2. 1 00(a)), by failing to meet the minimum Standards. Respondents’

enclosure housing a caracal (Twister) had a hole under the fence of adequate size to permit the

caracal to escape or the entrance of other animals, and the shelter for an ocelot (Pepe) had a nail

protruding from the top that could injure the animal. 9 C.F.R. § 3.125(a).

9.

On or about November 26, 20 1 1 ,
at Cave Junction, Oregon, respondents failed to

handle a leopard and a tiger as carefully as possible, and failed to handle the leopard and tiger

during public exhibition so there was minimal risk ofharm to the animal and to the public, with

sufficient distance and/or barriers between the animals and the general viewing public so as to

assure the safety of the animals and the public, and specifically, (1) respondents held a “photo

shoot” with a teenager, in which the teenager was permitted to handle a tiger and a leopard

directly, with no distance and/or barrier, whereupon the leopard bit the teenager; and (2)

following the leopard’s biting the teenager, respondents placed a leopard loose and unattended

inside respondents’ admissions building/gift shop, whereupon three visitors (two adults and a
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toddler) entered the building, and the leopard attacked and injured the toddler, and thereafter

injured one of the adults, all in willful violation of the Regulations. 9 C.F.R. §§ 2.131(b)(1),

(c)(1).

10. On or about November 26, 2011, respondents willfully violated the Regulations

(9 C.F.R. § 2.100(a)), by failing to meet the minimum Standards. Respondents housed a leopard

in a manner that exposed the animal to risk of harm, namely, inside respondents’ admissions

building/gift shop, which was open and accessible to the public, and could permit the animal to

escape. 9 C.F.R. § 3.125(a).

11. On or about May 6, 2013, respondents willfully violated the Regulations (9 C.F.R.

§ 2.100(a)), by failing to meet the minimum Standards, as follows:

a. Respondents housed a tiger (Zena) in a manner that exposed the animal to risk of

harm, in that the enclosure’s plywood wall has a large, basketball-size hole that left the

outer sheet metal panels exposed. 9 C.F.R. § 3.125(a).

b. Respondents housed exotic felids (Geoffroy’s cats) in an enclosure with a

build-up of urine and debris on the walls. 9 C.F.R. § 3.131(a).

12. On or about July 20, 2013, at Larkspur, Colorado, respondents failed to handle

animals as carefully as possible, and, during public exhibition, failed to handle exotic felids so

there was minimal risk of harm to the animals and to the public, with sufficient distance and/or

barriers between the animals and the general viewing public so as to assure the safety of the

animals and the public. Specifically, respondents exhibited leopards and tigers to the public on

a stage without any physical barriers (other than a rope), or adequate distance, between the

animals and the public, in willful violation of the Regulations. 9 C.F.R. §§ 2.13 1(b)(1), (c)(1).



13. On or about September 21, 2013, at Hillsboro, Oregon, respondents failed to

handle animals as carefully as possible, and, during public exhibition, failed to handle exotic

felids so there was minimal risk of harm to the animals and to the public, with sufficient distance

and/or barriers between the animals and the general viewing public so as to assure the safety of

the animals and the public. Specifically, respondents exhibited leopards and a tiger to the public

on a stage with an inadequate physical barrier (a portable panel) and inadequate distance between

the animals and the public, in willful violation of the Regulations. 9 C.F.R. §§ 2.131(b)(1),

(c)(1)-

WHEREFORE, it is hereby ordered that for the purpose of determining whether the

respondents have in fact willfully violated the Act and the Regulations issued under the Act, this

complaint shall be served upon the respondents. The respondents shall file an answer with the

Hearing Clerk, United States Department of Agriculture, Washington, D.C. 20250-9200, in

accordance with the Rules of Practice governing proceedings under the Act (7 C.F.R. § 1.130 et

seep). Failure to file an answer shall constitute an admission of all the material allegations of

this complaint.
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The Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service requests that unless the respondents fail

to file an answer within the time allowed therefor, or file an answer admitting all the material

allegations of this complaint, this proceeding be set for oral hearing in conformity with the Rules

of Practice governing proceedings under the Act; and that such order or orders be issued as are

authorized by the Act and warranted under the circumstances.

Done at Washington. D.C.

this
l

day of 20 1
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Administrator

Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service

COLLEEN A. CARROLL
Attorney for Complainant

Office of the General Counsel

United States Department of Agriculture

1400 Independence Ave., S.W.

Room 2325B South Building

Washington, D.C. 20250-1400

Telephone: (202) 720-6430

FAX: (202) 690-4299

e-mail: colleen.carroll@usda.gov


